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ADDENDUM ONE
DATE:

July 27, 2012
TO:

All Vendors 

FROM:
Mary Lanning, Buyer

State Purchasing Bureau 

RE:

Questions and Answers for RFP Number 4037Z1
to be opened August 24, 2012 2 PM Central Time

Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned Request For Proposal.  The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the Request For Proposal.

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

	QUESTIONS
	ANSWERS

	1. What happens to Medicaid Recovery Audit Contract RFP award if health care reform is repealed? Just curious considering RACs were a mandated provision in the health care law. I dont see anything in the RFP saying the contract is conditional on health care reform so I assume the contract would stay?
	“Health Care Reform” was not repealed. 


	2. Section III.F (1); Description The contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract the statutory Workers’ Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the contactors’ employees ……. Page 9; 
For employees working remotely, who will not be traveling, working on-site, visiting providers, facilities or State offices, do we still need to provide worker’s compensation insurance? Does this also apply to subcontractors? Please describe other auditing operations that are currently in place (or that are planned) that would impact the potential for recovery of claims overpayments under this contract. 
	The insurance requirements stated in the RFP must be met by the contractor.  

Section III. F. Insurance Requirements.   The contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on his or her subcontract until all similar insurance required of the subcontractor has been obtained and approved by the contractor.

Federal law requires that Nebraska Medicaid maintain all of its existing Program Integrity efforts.  These are described in the Current Environment section of the RFP.

	3. Section IV.A. 1-3; Description 1. For any Medicaid RAC identified overpayment that is appealed by the provider, the Medicaid RAC shall provide support to Nebraska Medicaid throughout the administrative appeals process and, where applicable, subsequent appeals to the appropriate District court. 2. For any Medicaid RAC identified Nebraska Medicaid vulnerability, support Nebraska Medicaid in developing an Improper Payment Prevention Plan to help prevent similar overpayments from occurring in the future.  3. Performing the necessary provider outreach to notify and educate provider communities of the Medicaid RAC’s purpose and direction. Page 22;  
Is payment for these three activities included in the contingency payment or is the Vendor allowed to bill separately for one or more of these activities. 
	Yes, compensation for all activities performed by the Nebraska Medicaid RAC contractor is included in the contingency payment.   

	4. Section IV.B 2; Description Nebraska Medicaid performs and will continue to perform numerous Program Integrity activities to identify and recover improper payments.  These include: a) Selection of investigation targets from quarterly reports that identify provider claiming services statistically higher than their peers, b) Investigating referrals from claims processing and program staff,  c) Investigating referrals from clients, contractors, and other providers, d) Performing pre-pay and post-pay utilization review on problem situations,; Page 23,     

How will these other efforts limit the opportunities for Vendor to identify, audit and recoup overpayments for Nebraska?
	The Nebraska Medicaid RAC vendor will not be allowed to audit situations already reviewed or currently under review by the Program Integrity Unit, other auditing entity, or investigative agency.

	5. Section IV.B 8; Description Nebraska Medicaid currently contracts  with two managed care companies to operate capitated Health Maintenance Organizations for physical health care for certain Nebraska Medicaid recipients in ten Southeast Nebraska counties.; Page 24;     

Will Vendor be auditing managed care companies to identify overpayments and underpayments? What percent of membership and what percent of premium (capitation) dollars are spent with the managed care companies?
	There are three managed care organizations contracted with Nebraska Medicaid as of July 1, 2012.

No, the managed care companies are not included in the scope of this RFP.  
At this time, 71% of the Medicaid eligible population is enrolled with one of the physical healthcare managed care organizations.  

The percentage of premium (capitation) dollars spent with the managed care companies is neither available nor relevant.

	6. Section IV.C 1 a (i); Description Medical Director who is a licensed physician (MD or DO) in good standing with the relevant State licensing authorities and has relevant work and educational experience.; Page 25      

Does the Medical Director have to be licensed in Nebraska? If so, can his or her experience be in another state?  
	If the Medical Director is not licensed in Nebraska, the Department must pursue an amendment to the Medicaid RAC state plan to request an exception.  If CMS does not approve this exception request, the Department will not be able to contract with that vendor.

	7. Section IV.C 1 a (vi); Description Audit Manager: Individual with relevant experience personally conducting audits of health care providers for at least ten (10) years and directly supervising the work of other health care auditors for at least five (5) years.  The Audit Manager shall have detailed knowledge of the Generally Accepted Governmental Auditing Standards and have at least three (3) years experience in conducting audits under those standards.  The Audit Manager shall have a working knowledge of the Medicaid program and have detailed knowledge of Medicaid coverage, reimbursement, policies, and regulations.  A Bachelor’s degree or higher in Accounting or Auditing is required.  The Audit Manager shall be a certified Public Accountant in good standing.        

It appears most audits are related to coding, billing, medical necessity and possibly fraud. The audit manager, however, must have auditing experience more appropriate for a cost reporting audit.     

Is this project focused on cost reporting or on medical coding, billing, utilization, fraud, waste and abuse? If it is the latter, why is the audit manager not required to have skill sets related to this area of expertise (especially since the project manager or deputy project manager already have the accounting credentials and backgrounds). 
	The Nebraska Medicaid RAC program is designed to reduce improper payments by identifying underpayments, identifying and collecting overpayments, and implementing actions to prevent future overpayments.
The Department has listed the qualifications necessary for this contract.

	8. Description Bid Bond      

Is a Bid Bond required? If so, when is it due? When will it be returned if the vendor is not awarded contract? When will it be returned if the vendor is awarded the contract?
	A bid bond is not required for this solicitation.

	9. Section 2: Procurement Procedures, Subsection K: Evaluation of Proposals, Page 5 

What are the scoring methodologies used for the scoring of each section of this RFP?
	The evaluation criteria will be available at the time of the RFP opening.

	10. Section 4: Project Description and Scope, Subsection D: Department Responsibilities, #6: Collect from Providers, Page 39
a. Will the Department allow offsets?
	If by “offset,” the question means capturing refunds from current claims, then, yes, offsets are allowed.

	11. Section 4: Project Description and Scope, Subsection D: Department Responsibilities, #7: Pay the Contractor, Page 39-40

a. Please explain the Department’s reconciliation process more in depth. How do recoveries relate between recovered savings and those identified?
	Providers are allowed 30 days from the date of a refund request to refund, appeal, or provide information that the refund has already been made.  If a provider does not exercise one of these alternatives, claims will be held to recoup the refund from current payments.
Identified overpayments are those listed in the refund request letter.  Recovered overpayments are those that the provider has refunded.  Recovered overpayments are used to pay the Medicaid RAC contractor contingency payment.

	12. Appendix A
a. Please provide the volume of claims and total paid over the past three fiscal years.
	See attached.

	13. General

a. Does the Bureau consider independent consultants to be subcontractors for the purposes of this contract?
	The determination of whether a party is an independent consultant or a subcontractor must be determined by the Primary Contractor.

	14. General

a. Is the Department looking for a single vendor to perform the RAC Audits?
	The Department may contract with more than one vendor.

	15. Regarding Section C.1.a.i, medical director, page 25 of the RFP: The RFP requests that the medical director be "in good standing with the relevant State licensing authorities." Does this mean that the State expects the medical director to be Nebraska-licensed? If a bidder were to submit the name of a fully qualified medical director who is in the process of obtaining licensure in Nebraska, would that be acceptable?
	If the Medical Director is not licensed in Nebraska, the Department must pursue an amendment to the Medicaid RAC state plan to request an exception.  If CMS does not approve this exception request, the Department will not be able to contract with that vendor.

	16. We understand that the State is expanding managed care statewide. Given this, could the State provide estimates for the number of Medicaid eligibles expected to enroll in managed care plans and the number expected to remain in fee for service after July 1, 2012? Do we understand correctly that managed care will cover only the basic benefit package, thereby carving out the following claim types: pharmacy, dental, long term care nursing facilities, home and community based services, personal assistance, and mental health/substance abuse?  Are any additional carve-outs planned
	At this time, 71% of the enrolled Medicaid eligibles are participating in managed care for their physical health care.
The “carve-outs” listed are accurate.

Please refer to the RFP for information on changes planned in the future for Nebraska Medicaid.

	17. Regarding B. Cost Proposal Requirements, page 49 of the RFP:  The language in this section is not appropriate for a contingency-fee contract. Is it appropriate for a bidder to ignore this page, and instead to abide by the language in Section E. Compensation for Medicaid RAC, that is found on page 43 of the RFP?
	The proposed Nebraska Medicaid RAC Compensation Plan must be submitted on Form B.  Additional information can be submitted as an attachment to that form.
Please refer to Section E, Compensation for Medicaid RAC for information.

	18. III. Terms and Conditions

a. Can the contracting office clarify which section of the response (technical or cost) should the vendors provide the accepted & initialed Terms and Conditions pages (7-21)?
	The initialed Terms and Conditions may be submitted in a section separate from the Technical or Cost sections.

	19. III.L. Conflict of Interest and IV.B.3. Potential Conflict of Interest

a. Does the state consider an actual or potential conflict of interest to exist if a bidder is currently reviewing the claims of Nebraska providers paid by other payers such as Medicare (e.g. serving as a Medicare RAC vendor) or performing other Medicaid claim review services (e.g. Audit MIC or PERM review)?
	Yes.

	20. IV.A. Project Overview

a. “…and other claims as determined by the Department” are defined as being outside of the scope of work. Can the state provide examples of these other claims that may be exempted from RAC scope of work or are these all specified in RFP Section C.2.b.v.b Types of Claims Excluded?
	No.  “Other claims determined by the Department” will be identified during the issue review process when the Department approves audit issues.

	21. IV.B.6. State Plan Amendments (SPAS)

a. Will the state consider making the look back period 2 years from the date of service rather than two years from the date of receipt of the claim? Much of our proposed review activities are based on analysis of claim service dates and having a date of service-based look back will make longitudinal analysis more effective?
	The Department has identified what claims will be considered for Medicaid RAC audits in the RFP.

	22. IV.B.8.  Managed Care

a. Can the state clarify whether Administrative Services Only (ASO) claims are within the scope of RAC review?
	There are no claims for the Administrative Services Only contract, so they are not within the scope of the Medicaid RAC review.

	23. IV.B.9. Other Special Projects

a. Are the Medical Home Pilots within the scope of RAC review?
	Yes.

	24. IV.B.11. Nebraska Medicaid Claim Payment Systems and Appendix D

a. Will the adjudicated claims from both the MMIS and NFOCUS be included in the Appendix D Claims Extract format? How are adjustments handled by these systems and how are they identified in the Claims Extract?
	Yes.
Adjustments are captured as full replacements or as changes to previously adjudicated claims.

	25. IV.C.1.a. Staffing Standards

a. Please confirm that these are staff that must be assigned to the contract but may not necessarily be committed full-time to this project, e.g., a full time Statistician or Technical Point of Contact may not be required.
	Correct.  The vendor should specify how much time each staff is assigned to the contract.

	26. IV.C.2.b.v. Audit

a. Can the Department confirm that RAC can rely on business rules extracted from existing written Nebraska Medicaid Policy, provider bulletins or Medicaid-sanctioned coding guidelines to identify erroneous payments with which providers must be in compliance?
	The Medicaid RAC can rely on the listed items and there may be other correspondence or guidance available based on the audit issue identified.

	27. IV.C.2.b.v.b.8. Types of Claims Excluded

a. Please explain the types of claims where “the beneficiary is liable” so we ensure they are correctly excluded.
	Claims for this situation include, but are not limited to, occasions when the client did not inform the provider of Medicaid coverage or when the client received a non-covered service.

	28. IV.C.2.b.v.c.5. Process

a. How much additional time should providers be allowed to provide medical records under extenuating circumstances? Will those exceptions be exempted from the 60 day timeline?
	Extenuating circumstances will be determined on a case by case basis.  The impact on the 60 day time line should be considered when the extenuating circumstances are reviewed and the time to submit records is extended.  The impact on the 60 day time line must be reviewed and approved by the Department’s Medicaid RAC contract manager.

	29. IV.C.2.b.v.d. Audit Types

a. Will the state require credit balance audits as part of the scope of this contract? Is the function currently being performed by the state or another contractor?
	No, but the topic could be presented for consideration as an audit issue.
No.

	30. IV.C.2.b.v.f.2.  Storage and Maintenance

a. Medicaid Record not Associated with an Overpayment. Is the one year storage of such records a minimum or also a maximum?
	Minimum.

	31. IV.C.2.b.vii. Appeals

a. Can you please provide documentation on the provider appeal process?
	The provider appeal process is outlined in the scope of work IV.D.6.b-d. 

	32. IV.C.2.b.viii.f. Other Reports

a. Does this requirement mean the generation of 25 reports on a one time basis, or the development of 25 operational report templates for ongoing use? Will the department accept training and access to a Web-based query and reporting tool which can be easily used by state end users in lieu of 25 specific reports?
	The requirements for the other additional reports may be either a one-time generation, the development of templates for on-going use, or a combination.

The Department is willing to participate in training for ad hoc reporting, but this may not replace the requirement for other reports.  

	33. IV.D.1. Provide Claims Data

a. Can the Department provide original inbound EDI transactions (i.e., 837s) in addition to the claim extracts?
	While inbound EDI transactions are kept, it may not be possible to separate them in a manner consistent with Medicaid RAC requirements.  The claim extracts are the primary method of exchanging claims information. 

	34. IV.D.1. Provide Claims Data

a. Are adjustment transactions included in the extract? Are any adjustments full replacements of previously adjudicated claims or adjustment transactions which need to be applied by the RAC Contractors against the original claims?
	Yes, adjustments are included in the extract.  Adjustments are captured as full replacements or as changes to previously adjudicated claims.

	35. IV.D.4. Establish Record Request Limits

a. What are the anticipated medical record request limits?
	Nebraska Medicaid will work with the successful bidder to determine appropriate medical record request limits.

	36. IV.D.6. Collect Refunds From Providers

a. Since the State is responsible for recoveries, how will the RAC Contractor be advised of any overpayments collected from providers by the state so we will be able to invoice for services? Will the information provided allow for the reconciliation of received payments versus the RAC notification to the provider? How often will the RAC be advised of overpayments collected?
	The Medicaid RAC contractor will be advised monthly of the status of collected overpayments through an Overpayment Collection Status report.  The detail included in the report may be modified to suit the needs of the successful bidder.

	37. IV.D.6.d. Refund Before Audit Complete

a. How much is the modified contingency payment to the RAC contractor in the event a provide requests adjustment or offers refund prior to completion of the audit? Under what conditions would there not be a payment to the RAC contractor?
	The modified contingency payment described in this situation and conditions under which there would be no payment to the Medicaid RAC contractor will be addressed in contract negotiations.
Ideas about a modified contingency payment for this situation should be included in the cost proposal.

	38. IV.D.7. Pay the Contractor

a. How often is the “periodic basis” payment to the RAC contractor?
	The “periodic basis” will be no more than monthly.

	39. IV.D.8.a.i.b. Incoming Data Feed

a. Please clarify the intent of this requirement. Is the state asking that the RAC Contractor generate an 837 EDI claims adjustment transaction back to the state for any identified overpayments or underpayments which the state MMIS or NFOCUS will then process?
	The successful bidder must be capable of performing an EDI 837 transaction.  Other mutually agreed upon formats may be used to communicate audit data and results.

	40. V. Proposal Instructions

a. RFP states, “Bidders should identify the subdivisions of “Project Description and Scope of Work” clearly in their proposals; failure to do so may result in disqualification.” However, Section A. of the proposal instructions, which outline the response structure (pages 45-46) do not reflect these mandatory sections.

b. Question:  Can the contracting office confirm where these two sections should occur in the technical proposal?
	The Project Description and Scope of Work are to be part of the Technical Approach response.

	41. V. Proposal Instructions

a. Is there a preferred section in vendor’s proposal responses where completed Form C should be provided?
	No.  
Form C must be submitted by the date shown in the Schedule of Events.



	42. V. Proposal Instructions

a. In Section B. Page 49, the RFP states, “The bidder must submit the Cost Proposal in a section of the proposal that is a separate section or is packaged separately as specified in this RFP from the Technical Proposal section.”

b. Question: To clarify, does the contracting office prefer the cost proposal to be provided in separate binders from the technical proposal, with 1 original and 6 copies?
	The cost proposal may be provided in a separate section of the binder.

	43. V. Proposal Instructions
a. Does the contacting office want any electronic copies (CDRs, DVDs) of the cost and technical proposals?
	Yes.  However, the document labeled as ORIGINAL will always be considered the full and original proposal. 

	44. V.3. A-G

a. Should vendors also provide subcontractor information for sections V.3. A-G?
	Yes.

	45. V.3.B

a. For privately held companies, will audited financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for 2011 suffice in meeting this requirement?
	Yes.

	46. V. 3. H. Summary of Bidder’s corporate experience

a. Does the contracting office also require 3 references for the prime, as well as 3 references for each subcontractor proposed? Or does the contracting office only want 3 references total?
	Yes, reference information is necessary for subcontractors.

	47. Appendix A

a. Are CHIP claims included in these counts and within the scope of RAC review?
	Yes.

	48. Appendix A

a. Is “Claims Paid” the number of claim lines or claim documents processed?
	“Claims Paid” is the number of claims paid based on the count of unique claim numbers.

	49. Appendix A

a. Are any of these claims on this table other than Medicare crossovers excluded from the scope of RAC review?
	There are no other claim types that are excluded in total from Medicaid RAC review. 

	50. Appendix A is a report on volume of claims – is there any report that would give us an idea of the number of appeals the State sees annually, per type of provider?
	No.

	51. Form B is for the compensation plan.  In submitting our “fixed price” information, is there a preferred form or format the State would like this submitted in?
	The proposed Nebraska Medicaid RAC Compensation Plan must be submitted on Form B.  Additional information can be submitted as an attachment to that form. 

	52. On page 25 of the RFP, Section C. Scope of Work, 1.a.i – is the Medical Director required to be a full time employee, or is that left to the assumptions of the respondent?
	The vendor must determine the appropriate amount of time for a Medical Director and propose that in their bid. If the Medical Director is not full time, the Department must pursue an amendment to the Medicaid RAC state plan to request an exception.  If CMS does not approve this exception request, the Department will not be able to contract with that vendor.

	53. On page 25 of the RFP, Section C. Scope of Work, 1.a.ii – it states that the Certified Coder will be “employed” for the reviews.  Is this use of “employed” meant to state that we will “engage” a certified coder for the reviews, or that the coder must actually be an employee?
	The vendor must determine the best method to use a Certified Coder for reviews and propose that in their bid. 

	54. Page 8, under III. Terms and Conditions, E. Ownership of Information and Data, it states “The State of Nebraska shall have the unlimited right to publish, duplicate, use and disclose all information and data developed or derived by the contractor pursuant to this contract.”  We want to clarify that this relates to the “data and information” only and not that the State would own the “system”.  We have a proprietary system that we would bring to this work.
	The RFP is amended to state the successful bidder owns any system brought to the project. The State of Nebraska shall have the unlimited right to publish, duplicate, use and disclose all information and data developed or derived by the contractor pursuant to this contract.


2009 and 2010 Claims Paid (For Question #12)
2009

	Claim Type Nebraska
	Net Payment
	Providers
	Claims Paid
	Patients

	CMS-1450 Home Health Claim
	$24,614,622.12
	132
	24,021
	5,914

	CMS-1450 Inpatient Hospital Claim
	$200,974,511.74
	287
	51,002
	29,087

	CMS-1450 Medicare Crossover Inpatient Claim
	$19,219,318.60
	420
	32,830
	11,221

	CMS-1450 Medicare Crossover Outpatient Claim
	$17,569,905.84
	846
	295,011
	31,661

	CMS-1450 Outpatient Hospital Claim
	$91,694,305.40
	740
	475,382
	128,019

	CMS-1500 Medicare Crossover Practitioner/Supplier
	$22,767,174.69
	4,094
	893,656
	37,131

	CMS-1500 Practitioner/Supplier Claim
	$359,100,418.65
	7,570
	3,608,500
	231,996

	MC-13 Dental Claim
	$34,631,864.34
	792
	268,694
	112,561

	MC-3 Drug
	$156,575,065.05
	635
	3,132,173
	188,999

	MC-4 Long Term Care Turnaround Claim
	$399,918,623.87
	840
	117,409
	13,205

	MC-5 EPSDT Claim
	$10,266,065.28
	690
	144,019
	74,248

	NFO Aged & Disabled Waiver
	$31,476,011.44
	5,012
	114,313
	3,152

	NFO DD-Adult Community Supports Waiver
	$639,007.45
	188
	2,425
	90

	NFO DD-Adult Comp Waiver
	$136,547,915.04
	27
	60,583
	2,507

	NFO DD-Adult Day Waiver
	$11,185,533.36
	25
	11,482
	873

	NFO DD-Adult Res Waiver
	$2,557,730.10
	20
	1,573
	151

	NFO DD-Child Waiver
	$15,395,775.20
	125
	4,574
	300

	NFO Medical Transportation
	$6,894,242.44
	433
	67,309
	7,242

	NFO Personal Assistance Services
	$12,991,363.22
	2,154
	54,698
	1,916


2010
	Claim Type Nebraska
	Net Payment
	Providers
	Claims Paid
	Patients

	CMS-1450 Home Health Claim
	$26,198,481.38
	125
	24,474
	6,221

	CMS-1450 Inpatient Hospital Claim
	$209,914,189.11
	282
	48,616
	28,709

	CMS-1450 Medicare Crossover Inpatient Claim
	$18,606,063.74
	430
	34,655
	12,889

	CMS-1450 Medicare Crossover Outpatient Claim
	$19,106,366.57
	857
	294,150
	32,482

	CMS-1450 Outpatient Hospital Claim
	$107,598,562.94
	787
	514,312
	140,087

	CMS-1500 Medicare Crossover Practitioner/Supplier
	$22,707,401.10
	4,150
	872,808
	37,300

	CMS-1500 Practitioner/Supplier Claim
	$365,074,423.19
	6,931
	4,815,463
	264,417

	MC-13 Dental Claim
	$38,635,784.47
	787
	301,320
	124,687

	MC-3 Drug
	$153,022,463.80
	615
	3,312,779
	201,299

	MC-4 Long Term Care Turnaround Claim
	$383,659,644.21
	879
	117,264
	13,362

	MC-5 EPSDT Claim
	$11,466,093.00
	649
	152,090
	79,598

	NFO Aged & Disabled Waiver
	$33,486,791.27
	5,110
	113,540
	3,146

	NFO DD-Adult Community Supports Waiver
	$995,245.43
	261
	3,949
	149

	NFO DD-Adult Comp Waiver
	$149,176,584.32
	27
	65,206
	2,879

	NFO DD-Adult Day Waiver
	$9,913,681.65
	25
	9,829
	916

	NFO DD-Adult Res Waiver
	$2,751,556.20
	21
	1,593
	168

	NFO DD-Child Waiver
	$16,395,994.11
	103
	4,602
	341

	NFO Medical Transportation
	$6,462,903.10
	435
	62,551
	7,239

	NFO Personal Assistance Services
	$13,019,750.42
	2,061
	49,162
	1,900


Page 14

